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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SABAIKO LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. (referred
to as the “Company”), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 32,2079
(July 16, 2022), the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the Financial Position of the Company as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) with allowed carve-outs and comply with Companies Act, 2063 and
Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The company has the provision of accumulating staff leaves in excess of 90 days for each financial
year according to its Employee Byelaws and the same is paid to the staff at the time of retirement
or termination from service. The company has provisioned NPR 11,444,743.89 as Liability for
Long-Service Leave as disclosed under Note 4.19. However, actuarial valuation for the same
hasn’t been done as per NAS 19. We couldn’t quantify the current service cost to be charged in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the amount to be presented in Statement of Financial
Position due to the same.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing [NSA]. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in the context,

In addition to the matter described in the Basis Jor Qualified Opinion section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our re
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S. No.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

Interest Recognition:

The interest income of the microfinance has
to be recognized on accrual basis and
following the Interest Income Recognition
Guidelines 2019 issued by NRB. Though
accrual basis of income recognition is
prescribed in general, the guidelines
requires suspension of interest recognition
on accrual basis for loans and advances
with overdue of more than 12 months
whereas for loans and advances with
overdue interest/installment for 3 to 12
months, interest recognition on accrual
basis is limited on basis of result of
collateral testing as specified. Given the
lack of system capability to suspend
recognition of income on the basis of
overdue status of loan and fair value of
collateral as well as review of fair valuation
of collateral on regular basis, manual
intervention will be required in interest
recognition process and hence create risk of
improper application of guidelines and
determination of the Fair Value of the
collateral. This may, in turn, influence the
recognition of interest income of the
microfinance.

Other Liabilities include excess interest
payable to loan customers reversing the
interest income which may vary when
microfinance commences the refund. This
may, in turn, have an effect on recognition
of interest income of the microfinance.
Thus, considered them to be as key matter.

Our audit approach regarding verification of
process of interest recognition included:

a. Obtaining clear understanding of the
process of accrual of interest income on
loans and advances in the Core Banking
Software of the microfinance.

b. For fair valuation of collateral, we
relied on the latest engineer’s valuation
and also test checked the change in the
fair value of the collateral.

c. Test Check of interest income booking
with manual computation,

Investment in Loans & Advances:

Investment in loans and advances comprises
of loans and advances provided to the
borrowers via various products of the
company. The valuation of aforesaid
securities has been done in compliance with
NFRS 9, Carve-Out issued by the
Accounting Standards Board Nepal and
Directive No. 2 & 3 of NRB Unified
Directive 2078. The investments are
recognized at Amortized Cost in the
financial statements less impairment losses.
Further, the compulsory carve-out to
provide for higher impairment of NFRS or
NRB Directive makes the assessment of
impairment important.

Our audit approach regarding assessment of
investment in loans and advances was done
on a risk-based sampling basis.

We verified outstanding impairment status
of loans & advances with reference to the
NRB directives, NFRS and Carve-Out
issued for current year which stated that
impairment shall be done at higher for
impairment provision as per NRB directives
or NFRS.

We verified provisioning of the loans and
advances based on ageing on the test check
basis as on 16.07.2022 and the provisions
are adequately made.
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S. No. Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

2. | Information Technology: Our audit approach regarding information
technology of the company was based upon
the Information Technology Guidelines,
2012 issued by NRB.

Since most of the information of the
company is digitally stored and transaction
are carried out digitally/electronically in
today’s scenario, we have considered the | ¢ We verified interest income and expense
information technology status of the booking regarding loan and deposits on
company as our Key Audit Matter. the test basis with the CBS of the

We have considered this as key audit matter company.

as any control lapses, validation failures, | ¢ We verified provisioning of the loans and
incorrect input data and wrong extraction of advances based on ageing on the test
data may result in wrong reporting of data check basis as on 16.07.2022.

to  management, stakeholders  and
regulators.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Other Information, and in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement caused due to fraud or error, and to issue auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the requirements of
NRB Directives, Companies Act, 2063, BAFIA 2073 and other regulatory requirements: -

We have obtained all the information and the explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
company.

The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the company.

Returns received from the branch offices of the company were adequate for the purpose of our
audit though the statements are independently not audited.

The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provisions for possible impairment of assets of the
company are adequate considering the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and from
our examination of the books of accounts of the company, we have not come across any case
where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the Company have acted contrary to the
provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the
Company and violated Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner, as would
Jeopardize the interest and security of the Company, its shareholders and its deposito
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o The business of the company has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its
Jurisdiction and has been functioning as per NRB Directives.

CA. Suman Shrestha

Partner

Shrestha & Neupane Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: January 25, 2023 (Magh 11, 2079)
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Statement of Financial Position

As on 32nd Ashad 2079
Amount in NPR
As af] As at
Particular Notes As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalent 4.1 313,257,008.36 246,615,619.38 320,038,166.56
Statutory Balances and due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4,2 - - -
Placements with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 - - =
Derivate Financial Instruments 4.4 - - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - - -
Loans & Advances to MFIs & Co-operatives - 4.6 - - -
Loan & Advances to Customers 4.7 4,338,722,812.60 3,437,594,953 42 1,971,636,620.18
Current Tax Assets 4.8.1 10,370,421.45 - -
Investment Properties 4.9 2 - -
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.10 59,884,286.97 49,965,272.90 30,452,893.86
Intangible Assets 4.11 910,720.00 1,015,593.00 984,392.00
Deferred Tax Assets 4.8.2 3,125,039,75 3,212,090.89 1,503,763.65
Other Assets 4.12 30,946,466.53 20,103,325.01 5,155,966.96
Total Assets 4,757,216,755.66 3,758,506,854.61 2,329,771,803.22
Liabilities
Due to Bank & Financial Institutions 4.13 2,939,854,993.34 2,410,863,254.36 1,460,455,620.59
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.14 - - 5
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.15 - - -
Deposits from Customers 4.16 1,314,232,819.17 904,544,405,52 603,272,229.91
Borrowings 4.17 - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.8.1 - 11,220,197.77 966,840.79
Provisions 4.18 - - =
Other Liabilities 4.19 95,831,964.62 93,446,771.22 44,746,045.06
Debt Securities Issued 4.20 - - N
Subordinated Liabilities 4.21 - 2 =
Total Liabilities 4,349,919,777.13 3,420,074,628.87 2,109,440,736.35
Equity
Share Capital 4.22 270,000,000.00 270,000,000,00 206,027,250.00
Retained Earnings 55,860,706.22 3,371,519.76 -301,934.59
Reserves 4.23 81,436,272.31 65,060,705.98 14,605,751.45
Total Shareholders Equity 407,296,978.53 338,432,225.74 220,331,066.87
Non Controlling Interests - = -
Total Equity 407,296,978.53 338,432,225.74 220,331,066.87
Total Liabilities & Equity 4,757,216,755.66 3,758,506,854.61 2,329,771,803.22
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.24 - - -
Net assets value per share 150.85 125.35 106.94
As per our report of even date,
Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079

Amount in NPR
'Restated’
Particular Notes Year Ended Year Ended
32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Interest Income 4.25 639,955,681.66 402,874,636.18
Interest Expense 4.26 342,419,462.28 154,501,721.06
Net Interest Income 297,536,219.38 248,372,915.12
Fees & Commission Income 4.27 56,421,574.61 68,776,963.10
Fees & Commission Expense 4.28 8,901,450.00 2,044,180.81
Net Fee & Commission Income 47,520,124.61 66,732,782.29
Net Interest, Fee & Commission Income 345,056,343.99 315,105,697.41
Other Operating Income 4,29 1,704,217.51 -
Total Operating Income 346,760,561.50 315,105,697.41
Impairment (Charge)/ reversal for loans & other losses 4.30 (9,463,953.82) 10,955,659.95
Net Operating Income 337,296,607.68 326,061,357.36
Personnel Expenses 4.31 168,958,664.89 121,530,409.54
Other Operating expenses 4,32 43,390,453.88 20,167,277.04
Depreciation & Amortization 433 16,295,186.14 9,756,691.60
Finance cost on Lease Liability 4.37 3,928,633.46 2,328,040.04
Operating Profit 104,723,669.30 172,278,939.15
Non Operating Income 4.34 - -
Non Operating Expense 4.35 - -
Profit before Income Tax 104,723,669.30 172,278,939.15
Income Tax Expense 32,185,993.45 50,217,398.69
Current tax 436 32,098,942.31 51,925,725.93
Deferred tax 4.36 87,051.14 (1,708,327.24)
Profit for the year 72,537,675.85 122,061,540.45
Profit attributable to:
Equity holder of the Financial Institution 72,537,675.85 122,061,540.45
Non-Controlling Interest
Profit for the year 72,537,675.85 122,061,540.45
Earnings per share
Basis EPS 26.87 4521
Diluted EPS 26.87 45.21

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079

Amount in NPR
"Restated'
Particular Notes Year Ended Year Ended
32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Net profit for the year 72,537,675.85 122,061,540.45
Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair valu
Gains/(losses) on Revaluation
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to above items
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - "
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financia) assets of foreign operation
Income tax relating to above items
Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss = -
Other Comprehensive Income For The Year, Net Of Income Tax - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year 72,537,675.85 122,061,540.45
Total Comprehensive Income attirbutable to:
Equity Holders of Financail Institution 72,537,675.85 122,061,540.45
Non-Controlling Interest - -
Total Comprehensive Income For The Period 72,537,675.85 122,061,540.45,___\\
As per our report of ev aleup ane 2
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Statement of Cash Flows
For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079
Amount in NPR
As at
Particulars Note Asat 31 Ashad 2078
32 Ashad 2079 (Restated)
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Interest received 630,891,574.80 394,062,202.51
Fees and other income received 56,421,574.61 68,776,963.10
Receipts from other operating activities 1,704,217.51
Interest paid (342,419,462.28) (154,501,721.06)
Commission and fees paid (8,901,450.00) (2,044,180.81)
Cash payment to employees (168,793,677.83) (103,091,563.78)
Other expense paid (43,390,453.88) (20,167,277.04)
Operating Cash Flows Before Changes In Operating Assets And Liabilities 125,512,322.93 183,034,422.92
(Increase)/Decrease In Operating Assets (912,535,834.73) (1,461,244,763.43)
Loans and advances to customers (910,591,813.00) (1,455,002,673.29)
Other assets (1,944,021.73) (6,242,090.14)
Increase/(Decrease) In Operating Liabilities 403,986,062.03 315,493,941.98
Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposit from customers 409,688,413.65 301,272,175.61
Borrowings -
Other liabilities (5,702,351.62) 14,221,766.37
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities Before Tax Paid (383,037,449.77) (962,716,398.53)
Income taxes paid (53,689,561.53) (41,672,368.95)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (436,727,011.30) (1,004,388,767.48)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (5,161,478.00) (10,737,660.15)
Purchase of intangible assets (330,525.00)
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (5,492,003.00) (10,737,660.15)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Receipt from Borrowing from Other BFIs 528,991,738.98 950,407,633.77
Payment for Finance Lease (13,091,425.80) (7,079,977.00)
Dividends paid (3,366,986.84)
Other receipt/(payment) (3,672,923.06) (1,623,776.32)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities 508,860,403.28 941,703,880.45
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents 66,641,388.98 (73,422,547.18)
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2078 246,615,619.38 320,038,166.56
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - -
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Ashad End 2079 313,257,008.36 246,615,619
As per our report of eveig
Accompanying nofes are integral part of t es&ﬁnancial statements
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd,

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079

(As Per NRB Regulation)
Amount in NPR
As at
As at| 31 Ashad 2078
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated)
Net Profit or (loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 72,537,675.85 122,061,540.45
Appropriations:
a, General Reserve 14,507,535.00 35,995,065.00
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund - -
c. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate Social Responsibility fund 725,376.76 1,146,396.00
¢. Employees Traning Fund S &
f. Client Protection fund 725,376.76 7,679,968.00
g. Other - -
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 56,579,387.33 77,240,111.45

Regulatory Adjustment

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)

(4,177,252.02)

(8,797,305.13)

e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+) 87,051.14 (1,708,327.24)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - =
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+) - -
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+) g =
i. Other (+/-) - -
Distributable Profit or Loss 52,489,186.46 66,734,479.09
As per our report of even Neupa e
Accompanying notes are integ'ral part of these financial statements {.,‘@ 4,,}
& ©
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w
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Garfgdpal dhary Keshab Kumar Paudel Pradeep Sigdel (Sharma) a Moorti Pant CA. Suman ShNS( ‘\@“
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director P: 39 Acco?
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N ‘-\\)/
Gopal Joshi Shyam Prasad Shrestha Bhav.
Director Director
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th Gthimire Subhma Diwedi Lohani
Chairman

Director

Shrestha & Neupane Associates

j g ? Chartered Accountants

Narayan Prasad Joshi

Date:Jan 25, 2023
Place: Kathmandu



Sabaikoe Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Note 4.1

Cash & Cash Equivalent

The fair value of Cash and Cash Equivalent is the carrying amount, Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount of cash in
hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original
maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their value and
used by the Microfinance in the management of short-term commitment.

As at As at
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Cash in hand 6,798,549.88 5,864,022.50 3,448,794.80
Balances with B/FIs 62,179,610.20 63,727,157.74 111,599,116.10
Money at call and short notice 244.,278,848.28 177,024,439.14 204,990,255.66
Other -
Total 313,257,008.36 246,615,619.38 320,038,166.56
Other cash and cash equivalent includes term deposit with maturity period less than 3 month from the date of acquisition.
Note 4.2
Statutory Balances and due from Nepal Rastra Bank
As at As at
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Statutory Balances with NRB - - -
Statutory Balances with BFIs - . “
Securities Purchased under Resale Agreement - - -
Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB - - -
Total - - &
Note 43
Placements with Bank & Financial Institutions
As at As at]
Asat 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Placement with Domestic Fis - = =
Less: Allowances for Impairment - - -
Total = - - -

There are no domestic placements with maturities more than

J%"W 7 “\@9/ &

5
Q\\,’\ /

¢ months from acquisition date.




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position
As at 32 Ashad 2079

Note 44
Derivate Financial Instruments

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at|
31 Ashad 2077|
(Restated)

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts
Others

Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts
Others

Total

Note 45
Other Trading Assets

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at
31 Ashad 2077
(Restated)

Treasury Bills

Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds
Equities

Others

Total

Pledged
Non-Pledged

Note 4.6
Loans & Advances to MFIs & Co-operatives

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at
31 Ashad 2077
(Restated)

Loans to Micro-Finance Institutions
Loans to BFIs

Loans to Co-operatives

Less: Allowance for Impairment
Others

Less: Allowance for Impairment

Total




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position
As at 32 Ashad 2079

Note
Allowance for Impairment

4.6.1

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at
31 Ashad 2077
(Restated)

Balance at Shrawan 01
Impairment Loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/Reversal

Amount Written Off

Balance at Ashad End

Note
Loan & advances to customers

Loan and advances given to Customers is shown at amortized cost and discounted using effective interest rate less the amount of

impairment allowances.
As at As at

As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated),
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 4,405,937,920.40 3,495,346,107.40 2,037,491,722.00
Less: Impairment allowances (67,215,107.80) (57,751,153.98) (65,855,101.82)

Collective impairment
Individual impairment
Net Amount 4,338,722,812.60 3,437,594,953.42 1,971,636,620.18
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - - -
Total 4,338,722,812.60 3,437,594,953.42 1,971,636,620.18
Analysis of loan and advances - By Product
As at As at|

As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Product
Term Loan - - -
Sadharan Karja 3,218,131,494.82 2.,333,319,750.40 1,525,246,349.00
Mausami Karja 33,920,745.00 52,200,270.00 62,138,773.00
Laghu-Uddhyam Karja 1,087,535,560.91 902,539,387.00 449,902,288.00
Grahak Punarutthan Loan 41,373,181.67 207,011,820.00 -
Yuwa Swarojgar Karja 24,927,775.00 - -
Aakasmik Karja 49,163.00 29,054.00 -
Aawas Karja 245,826.00 204,312.00
Other - - -
Sub Total 4,405,937,920.40 3,495.346,107.40 2,037,491,722.00
Interest receivable
Total 4,405,937,9@40 3,495,346,107.40 2,037,491,722.00




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position

As at 32 Ashad 2079
Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral
As at As at

As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Secured - - -
Immovable Assets 1,087,535,560.91 902,539,387.00 449,902,288.00
Government Guarantce - - -
Collateral Of Government Securities - - -
Collateral Of Fixed Deposit Receipt - - -
Group Guarantee 3,318,402,359.49 2,592,806,720.40 1,587,589.434.00
Personal Guarantee - - -
Other Collateral - - -
Sub Total 4,405,937,920.40 3,495,346,107.40 2,037,491,722.00
Unsecured - - -
Total 4,405,937,920.40 3,495,346,107.40 2,037,491,722.00

Allowances for impairment

At each reporting date, the Microfinance has assessed whether there exists objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the
loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall apply NFRS 9 : Financial
Instrument, to determine the amount of any impairment loss. ICAN has issued carve out on incurred loss model to measure the
impairment loss on loan and advances that the bank and financial instructions shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances
as the higher of amount derived as per Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NFRS 9. The
provision as per Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision is higher than the amount determined as per NFRS 9. So, Impairment loss
on Loan and Advances has been determined based on current period’s loan disbursement using direction issued by the NRB.

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at
31 Ashad 2077
(Restated)

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs
Other movement

Balance at Asar end

Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:
Charge/(reversal) for the year
Other movement

34,727,348.56

(12,592,584.43)

5,355,223.74

29,372,124.82

167,075.39

5,188,148.35

Balance at Asar end

22,134,764,13

34,727,348.56

5,355,223.74

Total allowances for impairment

22,134,7643

34,727,348.56

]

——x.5,355,223.74

il
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position

As at 32 Ashad 2079
Loan Less Provision as Per NRB:
As at As at|
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Opening Loan Impairment 57,751,153.98 65,855,101.82 18,674,150.06
Charge/(reversal) for the year 9,463,953.82 (8,103,947.84) 47,180,951.76
Other movement
Balance at Ashad end 67,215,107.80 57,751,153.98 65,855,101.82
Total allowances for impairment 67,215,107.80 57,751,153.98 65,855,101.82
Note 4.8
Income Tax
Current Tax Assets 4.8.1
This includes advance payment made by SLBSL towards income tax liabilities or other tax liabilities to the taxing authorities.
As at As at
Asat 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Current Tax Assets 42,469,363.76 40,705,528.16 -
Current Year Income Tax Assets 42,469,363.76 40,705,528.16
Tax assets of prior periods
Current Tax Liabilities 32,098,942.31 51,925,725.93 966,840.79
Current Year Income Tax Liabilities 32,098,942.31 51,925,725.93 966,840.79
Tax liabilities of prior periods
Net current Assets/ (Liabilities) 10,370,421.45 (11,220,197.77) (966,840.79)
Defered Tax Asset/ Liabilities 4.8.2
As at As at
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077,
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Defered Tax Assets 15,658,124.56 12,725,077.48 6,591,092.97
Current Year Defered Tax Assets 15,658,124.56 12,725,077.48 6,591,092.97
Defered Tax Liabilities 12,533,084.81 9,512,986.58 5,087,329.31
Current Year Defered Tax Liabilities 12,533,084.81 9,512,986.58 5,087,329.31
Tax liabilities of prior periods
Total 3,125,039.75 3,212,090.89 1,503,763.65
Note 4.9
Investment Properties
As at As at]
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 01 - - -

Addition/(Disposal) during the year

Net Changes in fair value during the year
Net Amount

Investment Properties measured at Cost
Balance as on Shrawan 01
Addition/(Disposal) during the year

Net Changes in fair value during the year
Net Amount

Total




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position

As at 32 Ashad 2079
Note 4.11
Intangible Assets
As at As at|

As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077|
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Cost:
At start of year 2,011,306.00 1,624,375.00 1,217,575.00
Additions 330,525.00 386,931.00 406,800.00
Disposals -
At end of year 2,341,831.00 2,011,306.00 1,624,375.00
Accumulated Amortization
At start of year 995,713.00 639,983.00 342,129.00
Charge for the year 435,398.00 355,730.00 297,854.00
Disposals - -
At end of year 1,431,111.00 995,713.00 639,983.00
Carrying amounts as on Ashadh End 910,720.00 1,015,593.00 984,392.00
Note 4,12
Other assets

The other assets that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at amortized costs and those other assets that

do not fall within the definition are carried at cost. These instruments are regularly monitored for impairment

As at As at|

As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Staff Social Loan 11,214,790.12 8,562,960.81 2,052,115.15
Employee Benefit Prepayments 733,534.17 579,021.47 42,730.34
Other staff advance - 14,600.00 2,521.00
Advance Insurance Premium 430,309.64
Security Deposit 29,460.00
Bills receivable 7,045.53
Accounts receivable 386,972.63 12,995.52
Accrued income 15,759,391.83 8,797,305.13 1,266,316.75
Prepayments 176,860.97 283,242.26 24,210.00
Consumable Inventories 2,215,147.18 1,858,039.73 1,514,375.33
Other institution advance - 8,155.62 233,657.34
Total 30,946,466.53 20,103,325.01 5,155,966.96
Note 4.13
Due to Bank & Finanacial Institutions

As at As at]

As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Borrowing from BFIs 2,939,854,993 .34 2,410,863,254.36 1,460,455,620.59
Settlement and clearing Accounts
Other
Total 2,939,854,993.34 2,410,863,254.36 1,460,455,620.59

oM y\‘??/
.-)’\
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position
As at 32 Ashad 2079

Note
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

4.14

Particular

Asat
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at
31 Ashad 2077
(Restated)

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreeements
Other Payable to NRB

Total

Note
Derivate Financial Instruments

4.15

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at}
31 Ashad 2077
(Restated)

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts
Others

Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts
Others

Total

Note
Deposits from Customers

4.16

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at
31 Ashad 2077,
(Restated)

Institutional Customers:
Term deposits

Call deposits

Other

Individual Customers:
Term deposits

Saving deposits
Savings from Members
Other

362,779,730.10
599,838,377.89
351,614,711.18

284,844,567.11
379,164,560.96
240,535,277.45

213,417,836.11
213,200,133.80
176,654,260.00

Total

1,314,232,819.17

904,544,405.52

603,272,229.91



Sabaike Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position

As at 32 Ashad 2079
Note 4,17
Borrowings
As at As at
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Domestic Borrowings
Nepal Government = = =
Other Licensed Institutions E - -
Others = - =
Sub-Total = - £
Foreign Borrowings
Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions S = =
Other Institutions g = =
Sub-Total - - &
Total = G =
Note 4.18
Provisions
As at As at
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Provisions for Restructuring - - -
Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation = = -
Onerous Contracts - - -
Total - - -
Note 4.19
Other Liabilities
As at As at
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated),
Employee Benefits Liabilities
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations - 6,491,609.00 2,582,127.00
Liability for long-service leave 11,444,743.89 6,630,843.14 3,904,384.65
Employee bonus payable 11,635,963.26 18,331,680.00 4,135,758.00
Staff payables - 6,430.10 -
Short-term employee benefits - 93,829.00 -
Lease Liability
Current Lease Liability 10,957,537.36 6,934,291.03 3,305,579.96
Non-current Lease Liability 29,791,467.29 22,360,181.75 12,178,218.29
Other Payables:
TDS Payables 932,294.08 810,477.36 372,309.00
Bills payable 959,469.00 - 60,873.40
Creditors and accruals - - 156,831.10
Interest payable on deposit 172,010.82 23,724,865.00 12,509,949.00
Interest payable on borrowing 6,312,282.40 4,029.451.42 4,386,293.08
DCGF Claim Payable 295,272.03 - -
Dividend Payable - 3,366,986.84 1,030,381.58
Audit Fee Payable 148,009.00 138,141.00 123,340.00
PRSM Associates 167,250.00
Serivce Charge Payable 23,015,665.50 - -
Insurance Premium Payable - 527,985.58 =
Total 95,831,964.62 93,446,771.22

01”1 \\’\\k\?/ 7y
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Sabaike Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position

As at 32 Ashad 2079
Note 4.20
Debt Securities Issued
As at As at|
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Debt Securities issued designated at fair value through
profit or loss = = =
Debt Securities issued at Amortized Cost - - =
Total 2 = &
Note 4.21
Subordinated Liabilities
As at As at
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Redeemable Preference Shares - - -
Irredeemable Cumulative Preference Share (Liability
Component) - - -
Other - - -
Total = - -
Note 4.22
Share Capital
As at As at
As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Authorized Share Capital 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
(3,000,000 @ Face Value Rs.100)
Issued Share Capital 270,000,000.00 270,000,000.00 206,027,250.00
(2,700,000 @ Face Value Rs.100)
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital 270,000,000.00 270,000,000.00 206,027,250.00
(2,700,000 @ Face Value Rs.100)
Total 270,000,000.00 270,000,000.00 206,027,250.00
Note 4.22.1
Ordinary Share Ownership
Particulars FY 2078.79 FY 2077.78
% Amount % Amount
Domestic Ownership 100.00% 270,000,000.00 100.00% 270,000,000.00
Nepal Government
"A" Class Licensed Institution
Other Licensed Institution
Other Institutions 0.30% 818,181.82 0.30% 818,181.82
General Public 67.58% 86,727,272.73 67.58% 86,727,272.73
Promoters 32.12% 182,454,545.45 32.12% 182,454,545.45
Foreign Ownership 0.00% - 0.00% -
Total ( '100.00% 270,000,000.00 100.00%




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position

As at 32 Ashad 2079
Note 4.23
Reserves
As at As at

As at 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
General Reserve 62,073,408.87 47,565,873.87 11,570,808.87
Regulatory Reserve 12,580,674.85 8,490,473.97 2,263,553.70
Customer Protection Fund 5,251,511.44 7,804,509.14 402,541.14
Corporate Social Responsibilty Fund 1,530,677.16 1,199,849.00 368,847.74
Total 81,436,272.31 65,060,705.98 14,605,751.45
Note 4.24
Contingent Liabilites and Commitments

As at As af]

Asat 31 Ashad 2078 31 Ashad 2077,
Particular 32 Ashad 2079 (Restated) (Restated)
Contingent Liabilties
Undrawn and Undisbursed Facilities
Capital Commitment
Lease Commitment
Litigation
Others
Total - =

The microfinance does not have any contingent liabilities and commitments till date.




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Financial Position
As at 32 Ashad 2079

Note
Capital Commitments

4.24.1

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
(Restated)

As at|
31 Ashad 2077
(Restated)

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub-Total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub-Total

Total

Note
Lease Commitments

4.24,2

Particular

As at
32 Ashad 2079

As at
31 Ashad 2078
{Restated)

As at
31 Ashad 2077
(Restated)

Opearing Lease Commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease, where the Institution is lessee

Not later than I Year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 Years

Sub-Total

Finance Lease Commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease, where the Institution is lessee

Not later than 1 Year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 Years

Sub-Total

Total

Note
Lease Commitments

4.24.3

The Microfinance’s litigations are generally related to its ordinary course of business pending on various furisdiction. During the reporting

period, the company doesn't have any pending litigations.
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079

Note 4.25
Interest income
'Restated’
Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Placement with bank and financial institutions 1,180,740.71 5,466,651.59
Loans and advances to customers 637,659,202.22 396,918,568.05
Loan and advances to staff 1,115,738.73 489,416.54
Total interest income 639,955,681.66 402,874,636.18
Note 4.26
Interest Expenses
'Restated’
Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Due to bank and financial institutions 291,332,417.13 120,693,633.24
Deposits from customers 51,087,045.15 33,808,087.82
Other
Total 342,419,462.28 154,501,721.06
Note 4.27
Fees & Commission Income
'Restated’
Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Service fees 52,424,378.50 64,626,149.50
Remittance fees 688.90 1,034.70
Other fees and commission income 3,996,507.21 4,149,778.90
Total fees and Commission Income 56,421,574.61 68,776,963.10
Note 4.28
Fees & Commission Expense
'Restated'
Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
ATM Management Fees - -
Visa/Master Card Fees . =
Remittance fees and commission - -
Service Charge on Borrowings 8,901,450.00 2,044,180.81
Total fees and Commission Expense 8,901,450.00 2,044,180.81




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079

Note 4.29
Other Operating income
'Restated’

Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Other Income 1,704,217.51 -
Gain/loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Total 1,704,217.51 -
Note 4.30
Impairment (Charge)/ reversal for loans & other losses

'Restated’

Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFIs - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 9,463,953.82 (10,955,659.95)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFIs : -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill  and intangible assets - -
Total 9,463,953.82 (10,955,659.95)
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079

Note 4.31
Personnel Expenses
'Restated’

Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Salary 66,272,102.95 45,338,988.16
Allowances 59,514,499.51 46,005,524.69
Gratuity expense 4,011,086.60 4,040,727.64
Provident fund 4,813,406.50 3,424,237.30
Gratuity Payment 816,369.25 -
Uniform 1,746,950.00 -
Training & development expense 4,027,726.04 1,327,827.50
Leave encashment 5,379,471.75 2,954,258.49
Medical 1,421,266.00 -
Pension expense 981,841.22 -
Dashain expenses 7,815,882.00 -
Support Staff Wages 357,106.75 -
Subsidised Loan Cost (NAS-19) 164,987.06 107,165.76
Sub Total 157,322,701.63 103,198,729.54
Employees bonus 11,635,963.26 18,331,680.00
Grand Total 168,958,664.89 121,530,409.54
Note 4.32
Other Operating expenses

'Restated’

Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Audit Fee 150,000.00 140,000.00
NFRS Implementation Fee 169,500.00
Other audit related expense 508,384.00 132,151.00
Office administration expense 40,795,953.68 16,431,621.04
Operating lease expense 1,715,701.20 3,012,830.00
Branch Acquisition Expenses - 300,000.00
Anniversary Expenses O 50,915.00 150,675.00
Total 43,390,453.88 20,167,277.04




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079

Note 4.32.1
Office Administration Expense
'Restated'

Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Water and electricity 1,147,080.50 763,836.18
Repair & Maintenance- Vehicle 366,326.50 232,698.21
Repair & Maintenance- Computer Accessories 337,121.00 -
Repair & Maintenance- Office Equipment & Furniture 255,182.00 254,885.00
Insurance 1,237,708.74 585,087.38
Insurace for loan 14,882,388.04 3,271,637.59
Postage, telex, telephone, fax, internet 2,009,552.13 2,117,897.27
Printing and stationery 4,137,534.53 2,576,602.55
News paper, books and journals 27,435.00 26,860.00
Advertisement 187,413.00 181,254.00
Travel allowance and expense 3,065,283.00 1,503,614.00
Entertainment 201,590.00 97,500.00
Meeting Fees 870,000.00 862,000.00
Annual/special general meeting expense 1,007,747.00 753,080.00
Software Maintanace Expenses 1,199,822.00 742,562.00
Other Expenses - -
(a) Fuel expenses 303,936.00 190,374.00
(b) Recruitment expenses - 67,650.00
(c) Business promotion 29,400.00 -
(d) Loan Renewal and Bank Charges 195,419.00 148,639.55
(e) Miscellaneous 12,230.00 311,348.46
(f) Furnishing Expenses 112,323.75 81,623.85
(g) Membership Closing Expenses 177,290.00 224,675.00
(h) Membership Fee - 65,000.00
(i) Puja Expenses 83,670.00 29,212.00
() Levies, Fees & Registration Expenses 1,599,584.51 461,800.00
(k) Reward & Prize - 43,000.00
(I) Consumable goods 1,115,932.37 838,784.00
{(m) Labour Charges 900.00 -
(n) Office Cleaning expenses 6,233,084.61 -
Total 40,795,953.68 16,431,621.04




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079

Note 4.33
Depreciation & Amortization
'Restated’
Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078

Depreciation of Property, plant & equipment
Depreciation on investment property

15,859,788.14

9,400,961.60

Amortization of Intangible assets 435,398.00 355,730.00
Total 16,295,186.14 9,756,691.60
Note 4.34
Non Operating Income
'Restated'

Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Recovery of loan written off - -
Other Non Operating Income - -
(a) Gain From Sale of Fixed assets - -
(b) Donation Assets Depreciation Reverse - -
(c) Other Rental Income - -
Total = »
Note 4.35
Non Operating Expense

'Restated’

Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Loan Written Off - -
Expenses of Resfructuringﬁ - -
Total =

\A
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Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Bandipur-1, Dumre, Tanahu

Notes to Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the period from 1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashad 2079

Note 4,36

Income Tax Expense

The Microfinance current tax liabilities are calculated using the Income Tax Act, 2058 as applicable in Nepal. Current
tax payable (or recoverable) is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit reported in
the statement or profit or loss, because some item of income or expense are taxable or deductible in different years or

may never be taxable or deductible.

'Restated’
Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Current Year Tax Expense 32,098,942.31 51,925,725.93
Current Year 32,098,942.31 51,925,725.93
Adjustment for Prior Years
Deferred tax expense 87,051.14 (3,212,090.89)
Origination and ( reversal ) of temporary differences 87,051.14 (3,212,090.89)
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax los ses - -
Total 32,011,891.17 48,713,635.04
Note 4.36.1
Reconciliation Of Tax Expense And Accounting Profit
'Restated’
Year Ended Year Ended
Particular 32-03-2079 31-03-2078
Profit before tax 104,723,669.30 172,278,939.15
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 31,417,100.79 51,683,681.74
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 4,295,839.13 5,756,035.12
Less: Tax effect on exempt income
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 3,613,997.61 7,109,680.93
Total income tax expense 32,098,942.31 50,330,035.93
Effective tax rate C  30.65% 29.21%




Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes to Financial Statements for year ending 32 Ashadh 2079

Note
Leases
A. Leases as lessee

4.37

The Company leases building for its operation. The leases typically run for a period of varying from 2-5 years, with an
option to renew the lease after that date. Lease payments have escalation clause for increment after every 2 years.

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below.

A.1 Right-of-use Assets

Right-of-Use Assets related to leased properties that donot meet the definition of investment property are presented as

Property, Plant & Equiptment.
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2079 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 27,022,734.03 14,329,877.14 7,577,411.30
Depreciation for the year (10,700,010.14) (5,869,754.60)[  (3,250,767.96)
Addition to Right-of-use Assets 20,617,324.21 18,562,611.49 10,003,227.80
Derecognition of Right-of-use Assets - o
Balance as an Ashad End 36,940,048.10 27,022,734.03 14,329,877.14
A.2 Amounts Recognised in Profit or Loss Account
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2079 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Interest on lease liabilities 3,928,633.46 2,328,040.04 1,405,808.46
Expenses relating to short-term leases 1,715,701.20 3,012,830.00 3,923,202.00
Total 5,644,334.66 5,340,870.04 5,329,010.46
A.3 Amounts recognized in Statement of Cashflows
Total Cash outflow as per the lease agreement for the fiscal years is as follwoing:
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2079 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Total Cash flow for the year (as per Agreement) 13,091,425.80 7,079,977.00 3,903,758.00
Total 13,091,425.80 7,079,977.00 3,903,758.00
A.4 Lease Liability
Detail about the liability under lease agreements for right to use assets with breakdown of curent and long term portion of
liability is as below:
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31-03-2079 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Particulars
Opening Liability 29,294 472.78 15,483,798.25 7,978,519.99
Additional Liability during the year 20,617,324.21 18,562,611.49 10,003,227.80
Finance Cost 3,928,633.46 2,328,040.04 1,405,808.46
Cash Payment 13,091,425.80 7,079,977.00 3,903,758.00
Net Total Lease liability as on Ashad End 40,749,004.64 29,294,472.78 15,483,798.25
Breakdown:
Current Portion of Lease Liability 10,957,537.36 6,934,291.03 3,305,579.96
Non Current Portion of Lease Liability 29,791,467.29 22,360,181.75 12,178,218.29
Total Lease Liability as on Ashad End 40,749,004.64 N 29,294,472.78 4
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1.

Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079
Reporting Entity

Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd is a national level microfinance Institution licensed by Nepal Rastra
Bank, the central bank of Nepal. Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (SABSL / Microfinance/ the
Company) was registered at Office of Company Registrar as Public Limited Company on 8th May, 2017 with
registration number of 168213/073/074. Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (SABSL) or "the
Microfinance" or "the Company") obtained license from Nepal Rastra Bank as 'D' class national level financial
institution for working as to provide banking services to the rural unbanked population and contribute to the
overall poverty reduction program through increment of production and productivity of rural Nepal. It started
formal microfinance operation on July 14, 2017, from its first branch office located in Bandipur - 1, Dumre,
Tanahu. It has over 92 Branches in Nepal. Registered under PAN 605953464.

Basis of Preparation

2.1.Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Microfinance have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standard (NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.
The financial statements are based on the formats mandated by the Directive No. 4 of The Unified Directives,
2078 as made applicable by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

These financial statements for the year ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079 are the first financial statements of the
microfinance prepared in accordance with NFRS. Reconciliations and description of the effect of the transition
to NFRS from previous GAAP is given in Note 5.11 of this financial statement.

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with the current year’s
classification / disclosures.

2.2.Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The microfinance follows Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan and
ending on last day of Ashadh.

These financial statements consist three Statement of Financial Position as of 32nd Ashadh 2079, 31st Ashadh
2078 and 31st Ashadh 2077 as required by NFRS-1, First-Time Adoption of NFRS. The microfinance has also
presented two Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, two statements of
Changes in Equity and two Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended as of 31st Ashadh 2078 and 31st Ashadh
2077 along with the necessary and related notes.

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of financial
statements as per the provision of The Companies Act, 2063.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on its 120™ meeting held on Jan
25, 2023 and recommended for the approval by shareholders in the 6™
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2.3.Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Microfinance operates. The financial information presented has been rounded off to
nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

2.4.Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in
the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

2.5.Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods except where deviations have been explicitly
mandated by the applicable accounting standards presented in the financial statements, including the preparation
of the opening NFRS compliant Statement of Financial Position as at 1st Shrawan, 2078 being the date of
transition to NFRS.

2.6.New Standards Issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by
IASB after the pronouncements of IFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB
Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. NFRS 9 is applicable from annual period beginning on or after July 16,
2020. The Bank is following all the provisions of NFRS 9 except impairment requirements of the standard, for
which the carveout pronounced by ICAN till FY 2080-81 is being adhered to.

2.7.New Standards and Interpretation not adopted

All accounting standards along with carve-outs, developed by Nepal Accounting Standards Board, Nepal (ASB
Nepal) and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) where applicable, have been
incorporated.

2.8.Discounting

The non-current assets and liabilities are discounted whenever the discounting is material and if required by the
NEFRS.

. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1.Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of Microfinance have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following items:

Items Basis of Measurement
Retirement Benefit Present value of defined benefit
Obligation Obligation less the fair value of the plan assets

3.2.Basis of Consolidation

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in line with the NFRS 03 "Business
Combination". The consideration transferred in the acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are measured
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recognized in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if they are related
to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The microfinance doesn’t have any other entity for consolidation of financial statements.
3.3.Cash & Cash Equivalent

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cashflow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks
and financial institutions, money at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturity
of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to and insignificant risk of changes in their fair
values and are used by the microfinance in the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash in hands, deposits with BFIs and other short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Details of Cash and Cash Equivalents are presented under Note 4.1.

3.4.Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.4.1. Recognition

The Microfinance recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition.
Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to
financial assets and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are
charged to the statement of profit and loss.

3.4.2. Classification and Measurement

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets.

3.4.2.1. Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
a. Measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR”) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR
and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Measured at fair value through OCI:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial
assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI).

Equity Instrument which are not held for trading and initially recognized as held for trading for which the
Microfinance makes an irrevocable election to carry the changes in fair value of the instrument through OCI are
measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income.

c. Measured at fair value through profit or loss:




or designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL.
3.4.2.2. Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as
incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

b. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

3.4.3. De-recognition

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.4.4. Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Microfinance
follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of
quoted for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive
markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could not be
ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

3.4.5. Impairment

The Microfinance reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether
an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management’s judgement is
extensively used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the
impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results
may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is
based on Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be
received. In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgements about the number of factorg
a borrower’s financial ‘s#ation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each i )
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assessed on its merits to estimate the recoverable amount of cash flows. A collective impairment provision is
established for:

e groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that
are not considered individually significant; and

* groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical trends of probability of
defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic and market conditions which may warrant for the loss
being greater than the suggested by the historical trends.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment Microfinance has categorized assets into following broad
products as follows:

Sadharan Karja

Mausami Karja
Laghu-Uddhyam Karja
Grahak Punarutthan Loan
Yuwa Swarojgar Karja
Aakasmik Karja

Aawas Karja

Carveout adopted for assessment of impairment charge

The Microfinance has opted to apply carveout on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual
and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision
required under NRB directive no. 2, higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment
loss for loans and receivables.

Comparison of Impairment as per NFRS and NRB:

Particulars F/Y F/Y Restated
2077-78 2076-77

LLP as per NRB Directives 37,176,773.15 57,751,153.98 65,855,101.82

Impairment as per NFRS 22,134,764.13 34,727,348.56 5,355,223.74

3.5.Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on
a trade date, when the Microfinance enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally
derecognized when sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss.
Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profit or loss in “Net trading income’. However, the
Microfinance does not have such assets to be recognized as trading assets as on Ashadh end 2079,

3.6.Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date.
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3.7.Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset.

Depreciation: The Microfinance depreciates property, plant and equipment following Straight Line Method
based on the useful life of the assets. The useful life of the asset differs from the useful life as prescribed under
Appendix —I of Application Guidance Note on NAS 16 as the company believes that the useful life depicts the
best use of the asset. The useful life of the assets used for depreciation purpose as per the management estimates
are as follows:

Type of Asset Useful Life
Partitions & Paintings 5 Years
Computer & Equipments 5 Years
Furnitures & Fixtures 8 Years
Other Assets-Lockers 20 Years
Inverters & Fans 5 Years
Vehicles 10 Years

The Microfinance adopts cost model for entire class of Property, Plant and Equipment. It has not measured any
Property Plant and Equipment at revaluation model and at fair value. The items of Property, Plant and Equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of newly acquired assets is charged based upon the date of invoice and assets having acquisition
cost less than NPR. 2,500 has been written down as an expense for the period in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

3.8.Goodwill/Intangible Assets

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

Intangible assets are recognized separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their fair value can be measured reliably. These intangible assets are recognized at
historical cost less impairment / amortization over their estimated useful life.The microfinance amortizes the
intangible assets over its useful life of 5 years.

3.9.Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and equipment
and non-current assets held for sale. It includes assets which are held for capital appreciation or for rental to
others or held for undetermined future use. It also includes land, land and building acquired by Microfinance as
non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date. However, the jicroﬁnance dessmothave Investment

Property as on Asha d. i)
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3.10. Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

3.10.1. Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates
to items recognized directly in equity or OCI in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive
income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current
year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current Tax Calculation as per Income Tax Act, 2058
3.10.2. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realized
or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset.

During this Fiscal Year Net Deferred Tax Asset is NPR 3,125,039.75 calculation of which is shown in Note
4.8.2.

3.11. Deposit, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
3.11.1. Deposits

Deposits by members and public depositors are initially recognized at fair value, plus for those financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for
measuring the deposits.

3.11.2. Debt Securities Issued

Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their
amortized cost using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. However, the Microfinance does not have such Debt Securities as on Ashadh end 2079.

3.11.3. Subordinate Liabilities

These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued
and other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc.
During the reporting period the Microfinance does not have any such liabilities.

3.12. Provisions, other Liabilities Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized, if as a result of a past event, the Microfinance has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the

at that date. Provisidng are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the ¢
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are reversed if there is no probability of outflow of resources.

The contingent liabilities are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation
as it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items and are
disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Microfinance
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
Microfinance does not have such contingent liabilities and onerous contracts as on Ashadh end 2079.

3.13. Revenue Recognition
3.13.1. Interest Income and Expenses

The Microfinance recognizes interest income and expenses for financial instruments measured at amortized cost
and interest-bearing financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income using the
effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into account transaction
costs and any discount or premium on the acquisition of the financial asset, as well as fees and costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The Microfinance recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, the EIR calculation also takes
into account the effect of potentially different interest rates that may be charged at various stages of the financial
asset’s expected life, and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest
and charges).

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.

If expectations of fixed rate financial assets or liabilities’ cash flows are revised for reasons other than credit
risk, then changes to future contractual cash flows are discounted at the original EIR with a consequential
adjustment to the carrying amount. The difference from the previous carrying amount is booked as a positive or
negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability on the balance sheet with a
corresponding increase or decrease in Interest revenue/expense calculated using the effective interest method.

NEFRS 9 requires that interest income for financial assets classified as Stage 3 be calculated on the net carrying
amount (after deducting credit impairments), which will result in a portion of contractual interest being
suspended. NFRS 9 requires that this suspended contractual interest be presented as part of the financial assets’
gross carrying amount.

3.13.2. Fee and Commission Income
Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
3.13.3. Dividend Income

Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the right to receive the dividend
is established.

3.13.4. Net Trading Income

dividend from fin




the amount net of trading expenses are disclosed in statement of profit and loss.
3.13.5 Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all
gains/(losses) raised from the revaluation of financial instrument at fair value.

3.14. Employee Benefits
3.14.1. Short term Employee Benefits

The Microfinance’s short term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, socials security
expenses, bonuses as provided in the law and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits
are measured on an undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the related
service is provided.

3.14.2. Post-Employment employee benefits
3.14.2.1. Defined Contribution Plans

Post-Employment benefits plan under which the microfinance pays a fixed contribution to a separate entity and
has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts are categorized under defined contribution plans.
The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the services are
rendered by employees.

Social Security Fund

As per the Contribution Based Social Security Act, 2074 every entity shall contribute a total amount of 31% of
basic salary of the employee as social security contributions. The company has enrolled under Social Security
Fund on 2078.02.19. Microfinance has adhered to the same and the microfinance doesn’t have any future liability
arising from such contributions.

Any unpaid contribution is recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’ in Note 4.21.
3.14.2.2.2. Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Microfinance’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the
fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds,
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Microfinance's obligation and that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefit is expected to be paid. The defined benefit obligation is recognized on the
basis of the report of qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Microfinance recognizes all
actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in OCI and all expenses related to
defined benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit and loss account. When the calculation results
in a potential asset for the company, the recognized assets are limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return on plan assets

(excluding interest income) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding interest) are recognized

immediately in OCI. The Microfinance determines the net interest expense (income) on
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beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefits liability (assets), taking into account any changes
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefits payments. Net
interest expenses and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized as personal expenses in
Statement of profit and Loss.

3.14.2.3. Other Long-Term Benefits
Leave

Other long-term benefits include those payments which are not due within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Microfinance provides accumulated leave benefits under its Employees Byelaw. Home leave is accumulated up
to 90 days and there is no limit to the accumulation of sick leave. Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long
term benefit liability. Accumulated leave obligations are calculated based on actuarial valuations.

However, during the financial year, the microfinance has not carried out actuarial valuation for Long Serivce
Leave.

3.15. Leases

At inception of a contract, the Microfinance assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

i. As as Lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the microfinance allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However,
for the leases of property the microfinance has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Microfinance recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Microfinance by
the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Microfinance will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset,
which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the microfinance’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Microfinance uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Microfinance has determined its’ incremental borrowing rate as per the interest rate charged by Nepal Rastra
Bank on its lending which is 10% for the financial year.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability coml\);i&e the following:




e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

e the exercise price under a purchase option that the Microfinance is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Microfinance is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Microfinance is reasonably certain not
to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Microfinance’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the
Microfinance changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or
if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Microfinance presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property,
plant and equipment” and lease liabilities in ‘Other Liabilities’ in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Microfinance has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. The Microfinance recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. As as Lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Microfinance allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone prices.

When the Microfinance acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Microfinance makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a
finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Microfinance considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Microfinance is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Microfinance applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Microfinance applies NFRS 15 to allocate
the consideration in the contract.

The Microfinance recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straightline basis
over the lease term as part of ‘other revenue’. During the financial year, the company has not entered into any
agreemgnt as a lessor, hence no income is generated due to the same. ;
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3.16. Share Capital and Reserves
3.16.1. Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash,
other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are
declared.

The shares issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue directly through
equity and disclosed in the statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

3.16.2. Reserves
The reserve includes regulatory and free reserves.
a) Statutory General Reserves

20% of the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution Act, 2073 and 50% of additional amount of Cash
Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in excess of 20% as provisioned in Circular
GHA/1/078/79 of NRB Dated 2078/04/11 is set aside to the general reserve.

b) Exchange Equalization Reserve

This is statutory reserve created in compliance with BAFIA. 25% of the revaluation on the foreign currency
computed as per regulatory books is set aside to Exchange Equalization Reserve.

c¢) Assets Revaluation Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is the requirement in the application of accounting policy for non-financial
assets such as property, equipment, investment property and intangible assets that are measured following
revaluation model. Revaluation reserve often serve as a cushion against unexpected loss but may not be fully
available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in the market values and tax
consequences of revaluation. The microfinance hasn’t followed revaluation model and hence no revaluation
reserve has been created during the financial year.

d) Capital Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves such as the amounts
arising from share forfeiture, capital grants and capital reserve arising out of business combinations. Funds in
this reserve are not available for distribution of cash dividend but can be capitalized by issuing bonus shares
upon obtaining prior approval from the central bank.

e) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

1% of net profit is set aside in the fund as per the NRB Directives for the purpose of corporate social
responsibility. The same has been disclosed as “Other Reserve” under Statement of Changes in Equity.

f) Employee Training Fund

The fund is created for the purpose of employee training. As per the directives to microfinance by NRB, the

microfinance needs to spend at least 3% of last fiscal year’s total personnel expenses for the development and

trainings of the employees. Further if the microfinance couldn’t spend up to the limit of 3%, the shortfall amounr

shall begransferred fg-
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g) Investment Adjustment Fund

It is a reserve created on investment in equity instrument if the equity doesn’t get listed in Security Market within
2 years as per the directives issued by NRB. The doesn’t’ have any investment in equity instrument and hence
no reserve has been created on the same.

h) Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance both positive or negative to
this reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be
regarded as free reserve for distribution of dividend are recorded in this reserve. The reserve includes actuarial
gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit plan.

i) Client Protection Fund

Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit. In addition to this, 25% of dividend in excess 0f 20% is also
allocated to this fund as per NRB Directives. The same has been disclosed as “Other Reserve” under Statement
of Changes in Equity.

As per the directives 4(1)(Ja)(aa) of NRB issued for microfinance, the microfinance shall earmark and invest
separately the portion of residual amount of the fund. In compliance with this provisionthe management has
invested NPR. 7,000,000 in Fixed Deposit with Mega Bank Limited and residual amount has been kept in bank
account for future expenditure purpose. Further, the microfinance has also approved the Client Protection Fund
Operation Procedure, 2078 through Board Meeting held on 2078/12/25.

i) Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance to this reserve as per the
directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for
distribution of dividend shall be presented under this reserve. The regulatory reserve of the microfinance
includes the reserve net of tax and employee bonus created relating to accrued interest receivable as on Ashadh
end 2079 not recovered. Reserve on deferred tax assets, n006Fn-banking assets, reduction in fair value of
investment in equity below cost price, actuarial loss etc.

k) Other Reserves

Any other reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose are presented under this by disclosing account
heads.

I) Proposed Bonus Distribution

The board of the microfinance has recommended 0.95% cash dividend and 18% bonus shares for the reported
year 2078-79. This proposal is subject to the ratification by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
The proposed distributions shall be recognized in equity in the period in which they are paid.

3.17. Earnings Per Share (EPS) including Diluted EPS

Microfinance presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit
and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighteWerage number of ordinary shares

outst% for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
D /g .
<«

{'\ ~
/e ¥ 5\\\\' \%




3.18. Segment Reporting

The Microfinance's operating segments are organized and managed separately through the respective
department/business managers according to the nature of products and services provided with each segment
representing a strategic business unit. These business units are reviewed by Chief Executive Officer of the
Microfinance.

The Microfinance has identified seven segments namely: Province 1, Madhesh Province, Bagmati Province,
Gandaki Province, Lumbini Province, Karnali Province and Far West Province as the seven operating segment
and the segment report is set out in Notes 5.4.

Segment reports include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot be allocated to aforesaid segment or
those related to head office are unallocated. The unallocated items generally comprise of head office assets, head
office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities. The geographical segment has been identified on the basis of the




5. Disclosure and Additional Information
5.1.Risk Management

In particular, the microfinance program provides financial services to the needy and poor households. Since
people in such households lack awareness and business skills, one has been very careful while doing financial
transactions with such people. This type of financial service is also more prone to risk as financial services have
to be provided by making the person aware and capable of such services. Therefore, identification of risk has
been carried out and adequate control system has been adopted in order to mitigate such current and possible
future risks in the Microfinance. The robust risk management capabilities are imperative in order to achieve an
effective risk management framework and contain the risks associated with the business, a fully functional Risk
Management Committee is responsible for identifying reporting, controlling and managing credit risk,
operational risk, market risk & liquidity risk. The Risk Management Committee oversees global, macro, micro
and departmental level risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to
the oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board committee to discuss the
reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee is an independent committee of the Board of Directors that has, as its sole
and exclusive function, responsibility for the risk management policies of the Microfinance and oversight of
implementation of risk management framework of Microfinance. The committee assists the Board of Directors
in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard to risk appetite that the Microfinance is able and willing to
assume in its exposures and business activities, risk management, compliance framework, and governance
structure that supports it. It periodically reviews the risk management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy,
and reasonableness. It also reviews whether the internal control and risk management system is adequate or not
to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The committee is to review the overall risk management
structure and monitor the effectiveness of the risk management system. The Risk Management Committee
comprises of following Members:

S.N. Name Designation
1 Mr. Narayan Prasad Joshi Coordinator
2 Mr. Jiba Moorti Pant Member
3 Mr. Pradeep Sigdel (Sharma) Member
4 Mr. Pawan Kumar Shrestha Member
5 Mr. Santosh Kumar Dutta Member-Secretary
Risk Governance

Microfinance implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the
microfinance and has trained risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity
building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture. The Risk Management
Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and compliance with, policies relating to Operation risk &
Credit risk.

The Microfinance’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the
Microfinance's risk blanket is dropped down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation,
risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line with NRB directives, and has effectively implemented the same.
The effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its
ent, and internal audit committee.

commitfges, senior man

wﬂ/@



5.1.1. Liqudity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to convert
a security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the process. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Microfinance might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due, as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such
scenarios could occur when funding needed for liquid asset positions is not available to the Microfinance on
acceptable terms. Due to lack of liquidity, entities are not able to invest as per the demand of the customer, they
are not able to repay the savings and other legal obligations on time. Therefore, the microfinance has managed
the liquidity as per its requirement in time to prevent such a situation.

5.1.2. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall interest rates will reduce the value of a bond or other
fixed- rate investment. The Microfinance will take the following measures to minimize the risk arising from
interest rates: ,

a.  Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rates has been included in the assets and liabilities.

b.  When analyzing the difference in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities does not
match, the amount of cash balance and non-payment of interest has been included.

¢. In order to manage and minimize the interest rate risk, the Microfinance has prepared quarterly (October,
December, March and mid-July) details and submitted them to the Supervision Department of Nepal Rastra
Bank within fifteen days after the end of the quarter.

5.1.3. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability that any creditor will not be able to repay the loan as per the condition accepted by
the borrower. Credit is the main wealth or sources of income of any financial institution. The future of the
financial institution is at stake when the borrower is unable to repay the loan borrower had agreed at the time of
taking the loan. Therefore, it is necessary to study the impacting indicators to get information about the condition
of the loan at risk. In order to prevent the loss of the loan invested and to minimize the risks related to it, Standard
loan disbursement procedure is followed to reduce the risk accordingly. Since every employee involved in the
process of approving the loan and investing will be assigned a certain responsibility, the concerned employee
will have to invest the loan realizing their responsibility. The following procedures/practices have been
followed:

® Analyze the Requirement and Repayment Capacity for the demanded loan,
e Invest in loans based on disciplinary records of the borrower,

e Monitor utility of the borrowed fund in the following months of borrowing and ensuring the fund is
utilized for income generating activities/businesses,

® Motivated members to increase savings,

e Taking details of the borrower's business and income and expenditure at the time of loan application,
for business loans,

e Taking necessary documents of secured property, if collateral loan,
e Classify the loans and arrange the loss provision as per the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank,

Dispursement of 1 within the limits prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank,
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e Continuously monitor and inspect the loan from the unit manager, branch manager and monitoring level.
If the interest is not paid on time or with delay, the branch should report to the monitoring, the
monitoring to the regional manager and the regional manager to the chief executive officer within 24
hours with detailed details.

e In the monthly performance appraisal of the staffs, a definite score will be given in this title including
the title of loan recovery of the branch to be monitored.

e Each branch will be audited twice a year. While conducting such audit, it is compulsory for Internal
Auditors to inspect the monthly meetings of few of the units and submit the details observed in meetings
through Audit report, either observed compliance and other discrepancies or not.

5.1.4. Operational Risk

The risk that arises during the day-to-day operations of an entity is called operating risk. In this program, small
but large number of transactions has been done, decentralized working method has been adopted, more focus
has been given on area expansion, priority has been given to cost reduction, Due to lack of integrated information
system, expansion of programs in rural areas with lack of infrastructure and lack of appropriate technology to
provide services as per the needs of the customers, there is always a possibility of operational risk in this
program. The entity has arranged the necessary staff to carry out various responsibilities for daily operations.
All the employees have to carry out their post responsibilities in the working process within the policy rules
specified by the entity. But sometimes due to the negligence of the employees and personal interests, the
organization is at risk when it goes beyond the policy rules. This type of risk is likely to reduce the entity's
income, the increase entity's credit risk (Reputation Risk). Since the operational risk is due to internal factors,
this risk can be reduced only if the internal control system is strengthened.

5.1.5. Market Risk

The Microfinance recognizes market risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the
Microfinance caused due to adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity),
foreign exchange rates and volatilities of those prices. Microfinance has an Asset Liability Management
Committee (ALCO) which meets periodically to discuss product pricing for deposits and advances and maturity
profiles of assets and liabilities, articulating interest rate, view of Microfinance, funding policy and balance sheet
management. After Understanding the market conditions and demands, the Board and the management bring
programs to suit the potentials and conditions of the market, and reduce the risk by providing appropriate
responsibilities to the employees from the top to the bottom based on their capabilities. For this, the internal
control system has been strengthened.

The following has been considered in market analysis:
e Information about competitors' services (programs) and interest rates
e Attitude of the members towards the organization
e Perception of other banks and financial institutions towards this microfinance
e Cost of service
e Fluctuations from changes in policy rules
e Strategies adopted by other organizations to attract their customers

e Customer dropout/rétention rate




5.1.6. Imstitutional or Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is often a major factor in determining a company's worth, particularly observable if the company
experiences a sharp decline in a short period of time. Due to this and its influence on compliance risk, it is a
leading factor in modern risk management. In order to manage this risk, the following things has been
considered:

o Strategies has been decided or modified according to the overall economic and social environment of
the country,

* Keeping abreast of the services provided by their competitors and their status,

® Providing service facilities as much as possible without giving in to the expectations and desires of our
customers

e Adopting appropriate strategies in resource mobilization,
5.1.7. Internal Control Risk

The Board and Management is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial
activities in a manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance
resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board and management has adopted policies and procedures
of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the entity's system of
internal control during the year and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate. The entity has its own Internal
Audit function to maintain independency on the internal control system of institution. The Internal Audit
Department monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures
across the Company through its program of business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the
areas of greatest risk as determined by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports are quarterly
forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and
Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.

5.1.8. Compliance Risk

The Microfinance is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability,
transparency and business ethics. It aims for zero tolerance of misconduct. In the day-to-day operations the three
lines of defense model defines the roles and responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk in the
Microfinance. The first line of defense lies with the respective Microfinance departments and units, which are
responsible for ensuring that compliance risks are identified, understood and reported to the management and to
Compliance Officer. The second line of defense lies with Compliance Officer, which assesses and monitors the
compliance and integrity risks and coordinates its control activities with the Risk Management Unit. The Chief
Compliance Officer reports to the CEO. Internal Audit Department is the third line of defense. The Compliance
function assists the Microfinance in identifying, assessing, monitoring and reporting on compliance risks in
matters relating to the institution, its operations and the personal conduct of staff members.

5.1.9. Fair value of financial assets and Liabilities

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the .M jective of a fair

value measurement in bothgases is the same to estimate the price at which an prderly traf(sz ok au’tio; 11 the asset
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or to transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e., an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that
holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1-

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded
using Level 1 inputs.

Level 2-

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3-

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The company has not made any investment in quoted or unquoted equity shares as at the reporting date.
5.2. Capital Management

The Microfinance's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is
adequately capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licensed
institution providing financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

() Qualitative Disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to
manageall material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well
as strategies formaintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient
process of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and(maintaining adequate capital.

The Microfinance BOD approved risk management policies for proper governan
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(ii) Quantitative Disclosures

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

¢ Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Paid Up Equity Share Capital 270,000,000.00
Irredeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares
Share Premium
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares
Statutory General Reserves 62,073,408.87
Retained Earnings 55,860,706.22
Un-Audited Current Year Cumulative Profit
Special Reserve Fund
Capital Adjustment Reserves
Dividend Equalization Reserves
Capital Redemption Reserves Fund
Deferred Tax Reserve
Less: Goodwill
Less: Intangible Assets
Less: Fictitious Assets
Less: Deferred Tax Assets 3,125,039.75
Less: Investment in Equity of Licensed Financial Institutions
Less: Investment in Equity of Institutions with Financial Interests
Less: Investment in Equity of Institutions in Excess of Limits
Less: Investments Arising Out of Underwriting Commitments
Less: Purchase of Land & Building in Excess of Limit & Utilized
Less: Reciprocal Crossholdings
Less: Other Deductions
Total Tier 1 Capital 384,809,075.34
Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:
Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Cumulative And/Or Redeemable Preference Share -
Subordinated Term Debt =
Hybrid Capital Instruments -
General Loan Loss Provision 16,610,154.62
Exchange Equalization Reserves -
Investments Adjustment Reserves -
Assets Revaluation Reserves -
Special Reserve Fund -
Total Tier 2 Capital 16,610,154.62
Total Qualifying Capital

Particulars Amount (NPR.)

Core Capital (Tier 1) 384,809,075.34

Supplementary Capital(Tier 2) 16,610,154.62

Total Capital Fun 401,4192799%:,
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Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
At the month end of Ashadh, 2079

A. On-Balance Sheet Items

Weight

S.N. | Description (%) Current Period | RWA
Amount (NPR.)
1 Cash Balance 0 6,798,549.88 -
2 Gold (Tradable) 0 - -
3 NRB Balance 0 - -
4 Investment To Govt. Bond 0 - -
5 Investment To NRB Bond 0 - -
6 Loan Against Own Fd 0 - -
7 Loan Against Govt. Bond 0 - -
8 Accrued Interests on Govt. Bond 0 - -
Investment To Youth and Small Entrepreneurs Self-
. Employment Fund 0 ) -
10 Bale}nc? On Domestic Banks and Financial 20 62,179,610.20 12,435,922.04
Institutions
1 Loafl A'gainst Other Banks' and Financial 20 ) )
Institutions' FD
12 | Foreign Bank Balance 20 - -
13 | Money At Call 20 244,278,848.28 | 48,855,769.66
14 | Loan Against Internationally Rated Bank Guarantee | 20 - -
15 | Investment To Internationally Rated Banks 20 - -
16 | Inter-Bank Lending 20 - -
17 | Investment On Shares/Debentures/Bonds 100 - -
18 | Other Investments 100 - -
19 | Loans & Advances, Bills Purchase/Discount 100 4,338,722,812.60 | 4,338,722,812.60
20 | Fixed Assets 100 60,795,006.97 60,795,006.97
Net Interest Receivables (Toral IR - 8 - Interest
o Supsense) 100 ) )
22 | Net Non-Banking Asset 100 - -
23 | Other Assets (Except Advance Tax Payment) 100 34,071,506.28 34,071,506.28
24 Real Estate/Residential Housing Loans Exceeding 150
The Limits ) §
Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 4,746,846,334.21 | 4,494,881,017.55
B. Off-Balance Sheet Items
S.N. Description Weight Current period
(%) Amount (NPR.) RWA
1 | Bills Collection 0 s =
2 | Forward Foreign Exchange Contract 10 - -
3 | L/C With Maturity Less Than Six Months 20 ] )
(Outstanding Value)
4 | Guarantee Against International Rated Bank'S 20 _ )

Counter Guarrantee




5 | L/C With Maturity More Than Six Months 50 i ]
(Outstanding Value)

6 | Bid Bond, Performance Bond And Underwriting 50 - -

7 | Loan Sale With Repurchase Agreement 50 - -

8 | Advance Payment Guarantee 100 - -

9 | Financial And Other Guarantee 100 - 2

10 | Irrevocable Loan Commitment 100 - =

11 | Possible Liabilities For Income Tax 100 - -

12 | All Types Of Possible Liabilities Including 100 ) )
Acceptance

13 | Rediscounted Bills 100 - s

14 | Unpaid Portion Of Partly Paid Share Investment 100 - -

15 | Unpaid Guarantee Claims 200 - =

16 | Amount To Be Maintained For Operational Risk (2% 100 95.,144,335.11 95,144,335.11
Of Total Assets)
Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B) 95,144,335.11 95,144,335.11
Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B) 4,590,025,352.66

A. Minimum Capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets:

Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 367,202,028.21
Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 183,601,014.11
Capital Fund maintained (in %) 8.75%
Core Capital maintained (in %) 8.38%

Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net):

Particulars Gross NPL Loan Loss Provision Net NPL
Sub- Standard 40,870,061.00 2,600,263.82 38,269,797.18
Doubtful 11,119,947.36 1,612,773.11 9,507,174.25
Loss 22,632,076.00 21,391,916.25 1,240,159.75
Total 74,622,084.36 25,604,953.18 49,017,131.18

5.3. Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and
fair valuethrough other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the classification of financial
assets and liabilities:

As on Ashadh End 2079

Particulars Amortized Cost

(NPR.) FVTPL | FVTOCI Total (NPR.)

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 313,257,008.36 - - 313,257,008.36

Statutory Balances & due from NRB - = = -

Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions

Derivative Financial Instruments - = - -

Other Trading Assets - - = %

Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-
operatives

Loans and Advanceskt;%@ustomers 4 333 722,812.60 = - 4,338,722,812.60
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Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in Associates

Investment Property

Other Assets

30,946,466.53

30,946,466.53

Total Financial Assets

4,682,926,287.49

4,682,926,287.49

Financial Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial
Institutions

2,939,854,993.34

2,939,854,993.34

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Derivative Financial Instruments

Deposits from Customers

1,314,232,819.17

1,314,232,819.17

Borrowings

Other Liabilities

95,831,964.62

95,831,964.62

Debt Securities Issued

Total Financial Liabilities

4,349,919,777.13

4,349,919,777.13

Particulars

As on Ashadh End 2078

Amortized
Cost (NPR.)

FVTPL

FVTOCI

Total (NPR.)

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

246,615,619.38

246,615,619.38

Statutory Balances & due from NRB

Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions

Derivative Financial Instruments

Other Trading Assets

Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-
operatives

Loans and Advances to Customers

3,437,594,953.42

4,368,761,147.25

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in Associates

Investment Property

Other Assets

20,103,325.01

30,941,942.63

Total Financial Assets

3,704,313,897.81

4,646,318,709.26

Financial Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

2,410,863,254.36

2,410,863,254.36

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Derivative Financial Instruments

Deposits from Customers

904,544,405.52

904,544,405.52

Borrowings

Other Liabilities

93,446,771.22

93,446,771.22

Debt Securities Issued

Total Financial Liabilities

3,408,854,431.10

3,408,854,431.10
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5.4.3. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

a) Revenue
Total Revenues for Reportable Segments 712,233,726.25
Other Revenues 7,228,888.43
Elimination Of Intersegment Revenues =
Entity’s Revenues 719,462,614.68
b) Profit Or Loss
Total Profit or Loss for Reportable Segments 152,858,648.74
Other Profit or Loss .
Elimination Of Intersegment Profits ,
Unallocated Amounts (14,830,244.70)
Profit Before Income Tax 167,688,893.44
c) Assets
Total Assets for Reportable Segments 7,945,395,920.12
Intersegment Assets -
Unallocated Amounts 3,169,208,139.96
Entity’s Assets 4,776,187,780.16
d) Liabilities
Total Liabilities for Reportable Segments 4,273,919,334.09
Intersegment Liabilities (502,268,446.07)
Unallocated Amounts -
Entity’S Liabilities 4,776,187,780.16
5.4.4. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas:
(a) Domestic 712,233,726.25
Bagmati 56,638,043.17
Gandaki 54,908,559.84
Karnali 18,684,863.99
Lumbini 142,907,582.64
Madesh 359,434,978.04
Province 1 36,280,055.35
Far west Province 43,379,643.22
(b) Foreign -
Total 712,233,726.25

5.4.5. Information about major customers

The Microfinance does

t hz:;?ny customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s




5.5. Share options and share based payment

The Microfinance does not extend the share options and share based payment to any of its employees. Thus,
during the reporting period the Microfinance does not have any the transactions that are to be accounted as per
NFRS 2 “Share based payments”.

5.6. Contingent liabilities and commitment

Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.24.
5.7. Related Party Disclosures

5.7.1.1.List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:
5.7.1.2. Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

S.N. Particulars No of Meetings Sitting Fees (NPR.)

1 | Board Meeting 16 567,000.00
2 | Audit Committee Meeting 9 99,000.00
3 | Risk Management Committee 3 50,500.00
4 | Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee 4 68,000.00
5 | Others ( Employee Pay Committee) 4 68,000.00
6 | Merger/Acquisition Committee 1 17,500.00

Total 870,000.00

Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments and Facilities

S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR.)
1 | Short Term Employee Benefits 4,130,315.00
2 | Retirement Benefits 351,936.00
3 | Others 92,000.00
Total 4,574,251.00

In addition to above, the Microfinance also provide other facilities like telephone, Medical Insurance, Accidental
Insurance, Travelling Allowance and Rent Reimbursed as per the approved employee facilities of the
Microfinance.

5.8. Merger and Acquisition

Microfinance has neither entered into any merger or acquisition discussions with any other Microfinance
institutions.

5.9. Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities
The microfinance doesn’t have any subsidiaries & associates. So, additional disclosure is not required.
5.10. Events after Reporting Date

As per the instruction of NRB to reimburse the excess service charge as charged by the microfinance, the
microfinance has made a provision for service charge payable of NPR 23,015,665.50. As it is an adjusting
event, the same has been a justid in the financial statement.
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FraAmTE aear (Structural Liquidity) fraver arfer

(Rs. in '000)
S.N . 91-180 181-270 271-365 Total
) Particulars 1-90 Days Days Days Days Over 1 Year  p—
Assets
1 |Cash Balance 6,798.55 6,798.55
2 | Balance with Banks & FIs 62,179.61 62,179.61
3 | Investment in Foreign Banks X
4 | Call Money 237,278.85 237,278.85
5 | Government Securities - -
6 | Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds =
7 | Inter Bank & FI Lending v
8 | Loans & Advances 176,237.52 | 220,296.90 | 308,415.65 | 1,542,078.27 | 2,158,909.58 4,405,937.92
9 | Interest Receivable - ]
10 | Reverse Repo =
11 | Receivables from other Institutions under Commitment -
12 | Payment to be made for facilities under s.no 20,21 & 22 -
13 | Others 989.62 40,649.60 38,669.82 80,309.04
Total Assets (A) 483,484.15 | 220,296.90 | 308,415.65 | 1,582,727.88 | 2,197,579.40 | 4, 792,503.97
Liabilities
14 | Current Deposits =
15 | Saving Deposits 98,248.10 99,248.10 | 148,872.15 99,248.10 867,616.36 | 1,314,232.82
16 | Fixed Deposits - s s =
17 | Debentures -
18 | Borrowings: - - - 588,877.93 | 2,355,511.73 | 2,944,389.66
(3) Call/Short Notice z
(5) Inter-bank/Financial Institutions 588,877.93| 2.355511.73| 2,944,389.66
(¢) Refinance -
(d) Others -
158 | Other Liabilities and Provisions - - - - - -
(8) Sundry Creditors -
(6) Bills Payable -
(¢} Interest Payable -
(d) Provisions -
(e} Others =
20 | Payable to other institutions under Commitment -
21 | Unutilized Approved Facilities =
22 | Letter of Credit/Guarantee (Net of Margin) -
23 | Repo -
24 | Payment to be made for facilities under S.No 11 =
25 | Others 8,521.82 11,740.02 20,261.83
Total Liabilities (B) | 107,769.92 99,248.10 | 148,872.15 688,126.03 | 3,234,868.10 | 4,278,884.31
Net Financial Assets (A-B) | 375,714.23| 121,048.79 | 155,543.50 | 894,605.84 | -1,037,286.70 | 513,619.66
Cumulative Net Financial Assets - - - - - -
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